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PART | FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MATERION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

ltem 1. Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements of MaterionpGration and its subsidiaries for the secondtguand first half ended June 28,

2013 are as follows:

Consolidated Statements of Income
Second quarter and first half ended June 28, 20diJane 29, 2012

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Second gquarter and first half ended June 28, 2Ad3ane 29, 2012

Consolidated Balance Sheets
June 28, 2013 and December 31, 2012

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flews
First half ended June 28, 2013 and June 29, 2012
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Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Income
(Unaudited)

Second Quarter Ended

First Half Ended

June 28, June 29, June 28, June 29,
(Thousands, except per share amounts) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Net sales $ 306,14 $ 325,08¢ $ 605,31 678,71t
Cost of sales 253,32( 272,06 504,15( 576,27t
Gross margin 52,82: 53,02« 101,16( 102,44.
Selling, general and administrative expense 33,32} 33,45 66,10¢ 66,10"
Research and development expense 3,15¢ 3,19¢ 6,711 6,29(
Other—net 2,95( 3,92¢ 5,431 7,71¢
Operating profit 13,39( 12,44* 22,91: 22,32¢
Interest expense—net 81: 82( 1,641 1,51¢
Income before income taxes 12,577 11,62t 21,27 20,81:
Income tax expense 3,66¢ 3,69¢ 5,571 6,764
Net income $ 8,90¢ $ 7,92¢ % 15,69- 14,047
Basic earnings per share:
Net income per share of common stock $ 04: $ 03¢ $ 0.7¢€ 0.6¢
Diluted earnings per share:
Net income per share of common stock $ 04: $ 03¢ % 0.7¢ 0.6¢
Cash dividends per share $ 0.08C % 0.07t % 0.15¢ 0.07¢
Weighted-average number of shares of common stockitstanding:
Basic 20,56¢ 20,43( 20,52 20,40(
Diluted 20,86¢ 20,66¢ 20,84 20,681

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
(Unaudited)

Second Quarter Ended First Half Ended
June 28, June 29, June 28, June 29,

(Thousands) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Net income $ 8,90¢ % 7,92¢ $ 15,69: $ 14,047
Other comprehensive income:

Foreign currency translation adjustment (62€) (68) (3,380) (822)

Derivative and hedging activity, net of tax (247) (15%) 15t (337)

Pension and post employment benefit adjustmenpfrtaix 1,22( 83t 2,43¢ 1,66¢
Net change in accumulated other comprehensive iacom 347 61z (78¢) 51C
Comprehensive income $ 9,25¢ $ 8541 $ 1490¢ $ 14,557

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

(Unaudited)
June 28, Dec. 31,
(Thousands) 2013 2012
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 15,72¢ $ 16,05¢
Accounts receivable 129,83: 126,48.
Other receivables 44k 40~
Inventories 207,63: 206,12!
Prepaid expenses 30,59: 41,68¢
Deferred income taxes 8,46( 10,23¢
Total current assets 392,68t 400,98¢
Related-party notes receivable 11 51
Long-term deferred income taxes 20,48: 19,94¢
Property, plant and equipment—cost 794,38¢ 779,78!
Less allowances for depreciation, depletion andrénadion (523,659 (507,24))
Property, plant and equipment—net 270,73( 272,54
Intangible assets 26,59¢ 28,86¢
Other assets 4,24( 3,761
Goodwill 88,75! 88,75!
Total assets $ 803,49° $  814,91°
Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
Current liabilities
Short-term debt $ 36,56: $ 49,43:
Accounts payable 28,82¢ 42,28
Other liabilities and accrued items 46,57¢ 55,81
Unearned revenue 46¢€ 1,54:
Total current liabilities 112,43! 149,06°
Other long-term liabilities 16,29¢ 16,17:
Retirement and post-employment benefits 123,44t 125,97¢
Unearned income 58,83: 61,18¢
Long-term income taxes 1,51( 1,51
Deferred income taxes 614 1,13(
Long-term debt 59,57¢ 44,88(
Shareholders’ equity 430,77t 414,99!
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 80349 $ 81491

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Unaudited)
First Half Ended
June 28, June 29,
(Thousands) 2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income $ 15,69: $ 14,047
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash pvided from (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization 18,65¢ 20,44(
Amortization of deferred financing costs in intdregpense 32t 32t
Stock-based compensation expense 2,67¢ 2,82¢
Changes in assets and liabilities net of acquiredsaets and liabilities:
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable (5,116 (5,502
Decrease (increase) in other receivables (40) 3,87:
Decrease (increase) in inventory (2,617 (21,959
Decrease (increase) in prepaid and other curreetas 11,10« (1,239
Decrease (increase) in deferred income taxes 1,16¢ (1,360
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable and acexpetses (27,147 (12,947
Increase (decrease) in unearned revenue (1,077) (1,470
Increase (decrease) in interest and taxes payable 177 20C
Increase (decrease) in long-term liabilities 2,40¢ (6,459
Other-net 1,90¢ 161
Net cash provided from (used in) operating activigs 18,12( (9,047
Cash flows from investing activities:
Payments for purchase of property, plant and eqgeippm (13,029 (17,95
Payments for mine development (4,382) (822)
Reimbursements for capital equipment under goventic@ntracts — 991
Payments for purchase of business net of cashveztei — (3,959
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 67 —
Other investments-net 2C 1,74z
Net cash used in investing activities (17,319 (19,999
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from issuance (repayments) of short-tetvh d (22,729 16,32:
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 70,24( 25,20°
Repayment of long-term debt (55,54) (7,499
Debt issuance costs (1,307 —
Principal payments under capital lease obligations (329 (383
Payment of dividends (3,19¢) (1,550
Issuance of common stock under stock option plans 84¢ 13¢
Tax benefit from stock compensation realization 1,31¢€ 73
Net cash (used in) provided from financing activites (6939) 32,31«
Effects of exchange rate changes (439) (93
Net change in cash and cash equivalents (330 3,17¢
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 16,05¢ 12,25¢
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 15,72¢  $ 15,43(

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.




Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Note A — Accounting Policies

In managemend’ opinion, the accompanying consolidated finansiatements contain all adjustments necessary septrdairly thi
financial position as of June 28, 2013 and DecerBke2012 and the results of operations for thers@éguarter and first half ended June
2013 and June 29, 2012. All adjustments were afrmal and recurring nature.

Note B — Inventories
Inventories on the Consolidated Balance Sheetsuargnarized as follows:

June 28, Dec. 31,
(Thousands) 2013 2012
Principally average cost:
Raw materials and supplies $ 39,79¢ $ 42,75:
Work in process 202,29: 203,17¢
Finished goods 49,82° 51,09
Gross inventories 291,91° 297,02
Excess of average cost over LIFO inventory value 84,28 90,89¢
Net inventories $ 207,63 $ 206,12!




Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Note C — Pensions and Other Post-employment Benefit

The following is a summary of the second quarte st half 2013 and 2012 net periodic benefittdosthe domestic pension plans
(which include the defined benefit plan and thepdaimental retirement plans) and the domestic eetinedical plan.

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
Second Quarter Ended Second Quarter Ended
June 28, June 29, June 28, June 29,

(Thousands) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Components of net periodic benefit cost
Service cost $ 2,35¢ $ 1,96¢ $ 7€ $ 93
Interest cost 2,35: 2,341 311 36C
Expected return on plan assets (2,996 (2,926 — —
Amortization of prior service cost (benefit) (86) (11¢) 29 —
Amortization of net loss 1,93: 1,402 — —
Net periodic benefit cost $ 3,56( $ 2,665 $ 41€ $ 45¢

Pension Benefits Other Benefits

First Half Ended First Half Ended

June 28, June 29, June 28, June 29,

(Thousands) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Components of net periodic benefit cost
Service cost $ 4,711 $ 393 % 152 % 18€
Interest cost 4,707 4,672 622 72C
Expected return on plan assets (5,999 (5,852 — —
Amortization of prior service cost (benefit) (170 (23€) 58 —
Amortization of net loss 3,86¢ 2,80¢ — —
Net periodic benefit cost $ 7,121 % 532 $ 83z $ 90¢€

The Company made contributions to the domestimddfbenefit pension plan of $5.5 million in thesfihalf of 2013.

Note D — Contingencies

Materion Brush Inc., one of the Compasiyvholly owned subsidiaries, is a defendant frametto time in legal proceedings where
plaintiffs allege they have contracted chronic Hemn disease (CBD) or related ailments as a resuéixposure to beryllium. The Comp:
will record a reserve for CBD or other litigatiorh@n a loss from either settlement or verdict idbphte and estimable. Claims filed by third-
party plaintiffs where the alleged exposure ocaliggor to December 31, 2007 may be covered byrarse subject to an annual deduc
of $1.0 million . Reserves are recorded for asdertaims only and defense costs are expensed asédc OneCBD case, which was filed
2012, was outstanding as of the end of the secondear 2013. No other cases were filed or dismiskethg the first half of 2013. A lo
reserve of $0.1 million was recorded for this cas®f the end of the second quarter 2013, unchangedyear-end 2012,

The Company has an active environmental compligmogram and records reserves for the probableafdsientified environment
remediation projects. The reserves are establishedd upon analyses conducted by the Compamgineers and outside consultants an
adjusted from time to time based upon ongoing s&jdhe difference between actual and estimated eosl other factors. The reserves
also be affected by rulings and negotiations wétfputatory agencies. The undiscounted reserve balaas $5.2 millioras of the end of ti
second quarter 2013 and $5.3 mill@nDecember 31, 2012. Environmental projects tertattlong term and the final actual remediatiorts
may differ from the amounts currently recorded.




Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Note E — Segment Reporting

Advanced
Material Performance Beryllium and Technical All
(Thousands) Technologies Alloys Composites Materials Subtotal Other Total
Second Quarter 2013
Sales to external customers $ 196,010 $ 74,33 $ 16,187 $ 19,60¢  $ 306,14: $ — 3 306,14
Intersegment sales 777 611 63 214 1,66¢ — 1,66¢
Operating profit (loss) 4,54 6,89¢ 822 2,38¢ 14,65: (1,269 13,39(
Second Quarter 2012
Sales to external customers $ 221,93 $ 72,506 $ 12,567 $ 18,08: $ 32508t $ — % 325,08t
Intersegment sales 50€ 672 12¢ 207 1,514 — 1,514
Operating profit (loss) 7,51¢ 6,68¢ (2,017 1,967 14,14¢ (1,709 12,44:
Eirst Half 2013
Sales to external customers $ 389,86: $ 148,85 $ 28,50¢ $ 38,08 $ 605,31 $ — % 605,31(
Intersegment sales 1,528 1,041 132 444 3,14¢ — 3,14¢
Operating profit (loss) 7,892 14,13« (479 3,82¢ 25,37¢ (2,467 22,91:
Assets 325,74t 266,56: 141,50¢ 24,53( 758,34¢ 45,15; 803,49
Eirst Half 2012
Sales to external customers $ 46373 % 147,73 $ 28,68: $ 3848: $ 678,630 $ 79 $ 678,71¢
Intersegment sales 1,171 1,36¢ 32¢ 471 3,34( — 3,34(
Operating profit (loss) 12,79¢ 12,94¢ (3,309 3,86( 26,29¢ (3,967) 22,32¢
Assets 353,82 248,08t 130,30¢ 23,82 756,04 44,07: 800,11«

Note F — Stock-based Compensation Expense

Stock-based compensation expense was $1.5 millitimei second quarter 2013 and $1.4 miliilothe second quarter 2012. For the
half of the year, stock-based compensation wasi$lion in 2013 and $2.8 million in 2012.

The Company granted approximately 147,866ck appreciation rights (SARS) to certain empésyin the first quarter 2013 at a st
price of $28.32 per share. The fair value of theRSAwhich was determined on the grant date usiBtaek-Scholes model, was $12.pdi
share and will be amortized over the vesting peoibithree years . The SARs expire in seven yeara the date of the grant.

The Company granted approximately 42,000 sharesstificted stock units to certain employees infitst quarter 2013 at a weighted-
average fair value of $28.32 per share. The fdirevevas determined using the closing price of then@anys common stock on the grant ¢
and will be amortized over the vesting period ofethyears. The holders of the restricted stock units wilféit their shares if the
employment is terminated prior to the end of thsting period.

The Company granted approximately 42,000 shar@eidbrmancebased restricted stock units to certain employedhe first quarte
2013 at a fair value of $23.90 per share. Thevalue will be expensed over the vesting periochoée years The final share payout to 1
employees will be based upon the Company’s totarmeto shareholders over the vesting period nedatib a peer group’performance ov
the same period.

The Company received $0.8 million for the exer@fapproximately 56,000 options during the firsifled 2013 and $0.1 milliorior
the exercise of approximately 13,000 options duth@gfirst half of 2012. Exercises of SARs totabggproximately 57,00t the first half o
2013 and 27,000 in the first half of 2012.




Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Note G — Other-net
Other-net income (expense) for the second quantkfiest half of 2013 and 2012 is summarized ak¥os:

Second Quarter Ended First Half Ended
June 28, June 29, June 28, June 29,
(Thousands) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Foreign currency exchange/translation gain $ 42¢  $ 177 $ 1,14 $ 42C
Amortization of intangible assets (1,329 (1,43% (2,642 (2,869
Metal consignment fees (1,709 (2,64%) (3,519 (4,869
Other items (357 (22 (41¢€) (399
Total $ (2,950 $ (3,92¢) $ (5,430 $ (7,71¢)

Note H — Income Taxes

The tax expense of $3.7 million in the second qua?2013 was calculated by applying a rate of 29a2fainst income before inco
taxes while the tax expense of $3.7 million in seeond quarter 2012 was calculated by applyingeaaf31.8%against the income befc
income taxes in that period.

In the first half of 2013, the tax expense of $milion was calculated using an effective rate 6f22% . The tax expense w#6.¢
million in the first half of 2012 and the effectivate was 32.5% in that period.

The differences between the statutory and effeatites in the second quarter and first half of bgthrs was due to the impac
percentage depletion, the production deductioreidor source income and deductions, executive cosgpiem, state and local taxes, disc
events and other factors. The research and expesatien credit for 2013 also reduced the effectaserate in the second quarter and first
of 2013.

The Company recorded a discrete tax benefit of 80l&n in the first quarter 2013 primarily for the resdaend experimentation cre
for 2012. The research and experimentation credg mot recorded in 2012 as the U.S. Congress digxtend the credit for 2012 until 1
first quarter 2013 and accounting regulations negtax expense to be recorded based upon the tetvevére in effect as of year end.

Discrete events totaled $0.1 million in the firafrof 2012.

Note | — Depreciation

The Company received $63.5 millidrom the Department of Defense (DoD) in previousqas for reimbursement of the DoD's st
of the cost of capital equipment acquired by thenany under a Title Il contract. The Company reear the cost of the equipmen
property, plant and equipment and the reimbursesr@hunearned income, a liability on the Consddidid@alance Sheet. The equipment
placed in service during the third quarter 2012 @sdull cost is being depreciated in accordandé wompany policy. The unearned incc
liability is being reduced ratably with the depemn expense recorded over the life of the equiime

In the first half of 2013, the depreciation expepsethe equipment subject to reimbursement was ®2I®&n . Unearned income w
reduced by $2.3 millionaccordingly, with the offset recorded as a cralitost of sales. Depreciation, depletion and &mairon expense (
the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows is shatefireduction in unearned income.

9




Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Note J — Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company measures and records financial institemat their fair values. A fair value hierarchyused for those instrume
measured at fair value that distinguishes betwesstiraptions based on market data (observable inpats)the Compang’ assumptior
(unobservable inputs). The hierarchy consists i@ethevels:

Level 1 — Quoted market prices in active marketddentical assets and liabilities;
Level 2 — Inputs other than Level 1 inputs thateitber directly or indirectly observable; and

Level 3 — Unobservable inputs developed using estimates aasdngptions developed by the Company, which refilecse that
market participant would use.

The following table summarizes the financial instents measured at fair value in the Consolidatddrige Sheet as of June 28, 2013:

Fair Value Measurements
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
(Thousands) Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial Assets
Directors’ deferred compensation investments $ 494 3 494  $ — 3 —
Foreign currency forward contracts 553 — 55¢€ —
Precious metal forward contracts 23 — 23 —
Total $ 1,07C $ 494 $ 57¢ $ —
Financial Liabilities
Directors’ deferred compensation liability $ 494 % 494 $ —  $ =
Total $ 494 % 494 $ — —

The Company uses a market approach to value tle¢saansd liabilities for outstanding derivative qacts in the table above. Fore
currency forward contracts and precious metal hexgéracts are valued through models that utilizek®t observable inputs including b
spot and forward prices for the same underlyingengies and metals. The carrying values of therotloeking capital items and debt on
Consolidated Balance Sheet approximate their fires as of June 28, 2013.

Note K — Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activity

The Company uses derivative contracts to hedgéoperdf its foreign currency and precious metalesxpes. The objectives for us
derivatives in these areas are as follows:

Foreign Currency . The Company sells products to overseas custometteeir local currencies, primarily the euro anehy The
Company uses foreign currency derivatives, maiatyérd contracts and options, to hedge these pat®&il sales transactions. °
purpose of the hedge program is to protect agéiesteduction in dollar value of the foreign cuegrsales from adverse excha
rate movements. Should the dollar strengthen sagmifly, the decrease in the translated value efdheign currency sales shoulc
partially offset by gains on the hedge contractsp&hding upon the methods used, the hedge contmctimit the benefits from
weakening U.S. dollar.

The use of forward contracts locks in a firm ratel @liminates any downside from an adverse rateemewnt as well as any ben
from a favorable rate movement. The Company mam ftime to time choose to hedge with options omaléan of options known
a collar. These hedging techniques can limit omiglate the downside risk but can allow for somealbrof the benefit from
favorable rate movement to be realized. Unlikeravéod contract, a premium is paid for an optior|ars, which are a combinati
of a put and call option, may have a net premiuirthey can be structured

10




Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Note K — Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activity (Continued)

to be cash neutral. The Company will primarily hedgth forward contracts due to the relationshipMeen the cash outlay and
level of risk.

The use of foreign currency derivative contractgaserned by policies approved by the Audit Comeeitdf the Board of Directo
A team consisting of senior financial managers ewsgi the estimated exposure levels, as defined dgdis, forecasts and ot
internal data, and determines the timing, amountsiastruments to use to hedge that exposure witiénconfines of the polic
Management analyzes the effective hedged rateshenaictual and projected gains and losses on tgifgetransactions against
program objectives, targeted rates and levelssifassumed. Hedge contracts are typically layered different times for a specifi
exposure period in order to minimize the impaatat® movements.

Precious Metals . The Company maintains the majority of its presionetal production requirements on consignmentrdterotc
reduce the working capital investment and the exy@# metal price movements. When a precious npetaluct is fabricated a
ready for shipment to the customer, the metal i€lpased out of consignment at the current markee @nd that price forms t
basis for the price to be charged to the customer.

In certain circumstances, a customer may wanttabbsh the price for the precious metal when tidessorder is placed rather tha
the time of the shipment. Setting the selling pata different date than when the material wowgbrchased potentially creates
exposure to movements in the market price of theaim€herefore, in these limited situations, ther(any may elect to enter int
forward contract to purchase a stated quantityretipus metal at a fixed price on a specified datthe future. The price in tl
forward contract serves as the basis for the pgucke charged to the customer. By so doing, théingednd purchase prices
matched and the Company’s market price exposusglisced.

The Company refines precious metahtaining materials for its customers and typicalill purchase the refined metal from
customer at current market prices. In limited anstances, the customer may want to fix the prideetpaid at the time of the on
as opposed to when the material is refined. Theomesr may also want to fix the price to be paiddarumber of orders over a pel
of time. The Company may then enter into a hedgeract, either a forward contract or a swap, totffig price for the estimat
guantity of refined metal to be purchased thergolycing the exposure to adverse movements in thieetarice of the metal.

The Company will only enter into a derivative catrif there is an underlying identified exposut@ntracts are typically held ur
maturity. The Company does not engage in derivdtaeing activities and does not use derivativessfieculative purposes. The Comg
only uses currency hedge contracts that are dembetrin the same currency as the underlying exposod precious metal hedge contr
denominated in the same metal as the underlyingsexp.

All derivatives are recorded on the balance she#tar fair values. If the derivative is desigratend effective as a cash flow hec
changes in the fair value of the derivative ar@gaized in other comprehensive income (OCI) uhtl hedged item is recognized in earni
The ineffective portion of a derivativefair value, if any, is recognized in earnings iediately. If a derivative is not a hedge, changethé
fair value are adjusted through income. The falues of the outstanding derivatives are recordedhenbalance sheet as assets (i
derivatives are in a gain position) or liabilitiésthe derivatives are in a loss position). Thi falues will also be classified as short terr
long term depending upon their maturity dates.

The outstanding foreign currency forward contrdietd a notional value of $17.9 milli@s of June 28, 2013. All of these contracts
designated and effective as cash flow hedges. @ilnevalues of these contracts of $0.6 millisas recorded in prepaid expenses or
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 28, 2013oiis¢anding precious metal forward contracts hadtonal value of $0.1 milliomnd :
fair value of less than $0.1 million as of June 2@&13.

There was no ineffectiveness associated with tidracts outstanding at June 28, 2013 anéheffectiveness expense was recorde
the first six months of 2013 or 2012.

Changes in the fair value of outstanding cash thedges recorded in OCI totaled $0.6 million at J28e2013 and $1.2 millioat Jun
29, 2012. The Company expects to relieve the ehtitance in OCI as of June 28, 2013 to income erbnsolidated Statements of Ince
during the twelve month period beginning June 24,3 See Note L to the Consolidated Financial States for additional OCI details.
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Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Note L — Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income

Changes in the components of accumulated other drapsive income, including the amounts reclaskifigt, for the second quar

and first half of 2013 and 2012 are as follows:

Gains and Losses
On Cash Flow Hedges

Pension and Post Foreign

Foreign Employment Currency
(Thousands) Currency Precious Metals Benefits Translation Total
Balance, March 29, 2013 $ 96 $ — $ (125,66) $ 1,32: $ (123,37)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before
reclassifications 13 23 — (62€) (590
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income (429 — 1,87¢ — 1,447
Net current period other comprehensive income Yloss (41¢) 23 1,87¢ (62€) 857
Balance, June 28, 2013 $ 55: $ 23 $ (123,78) $ 697 $ (122,519
Balance, March 30, 2012 $ 1,197 $ — $ (103,95) $ 4,19: $ (98,56%)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before
reclassifications 46€ (550 — (68) (152
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income (462) 39: 1,28¢ — 1,21t
Net current period other comprehensive income Yloss 4 (157) 1,28¢ (68) 1,06:
Balance, June 29, 2012 $ 1,201 % (157 $ (102,669 $ 412 $ (97,499
Balance, December 31, 2012 $ 25 % 97 $ (127,54) $ 4,077 $ (123,11
Other comprehensive income (loss) before
reclassifications 871 23 — (3,380 (2,486
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income (577) (97) 3,752 — 3,08¢
Net current period other comprehensive income Yloss 30C (74) 3,752 (3,380) 59¢
Balance, June 28, 2013 $ 55: % 23 $ (123,789 $ 697 $ (122,519
Balance, December 31, 2011 $ 1,39¢ $ 51 $ (105,23¢) $ 4947 $ (98,83Y)
Other comprehensive income (loss) before
reclassifications 67¢ (550 — (822) (693)
Amounts reclassified from accumulated other
comprehensive income (877) 34z 2,56¢ — 2,03:
Net current period other comprehensive income Yloss (19¢) (20€) 2,56¢ (822) 1,34(
Balance, June 29, 2012 $ 1,201 % (157 $ (102,669 $ 412 $ (97,499

Reclassifications from accumulated other comprekierincome of gains and losses on foreign currezash flow hedges are recor
in othernet on the Consolidated Statement of Income whitegains and losses on precious metal cash cagthédges are recorded in ¢
of sales on the Consolidated Statement of Incoree. ote K to the Consolidated Financial Stateméntsdditional details on cash fl

hedges.
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Materion Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
(Unaudited)

Note L — Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Qutinued)
Reclassifications from accumulated other comprekensicome for pension and post employment benedits included in tt

computation of the net periodic pension and pospleyment benefit expense. See Note C to the Catetelil Financial Statements
additional details on pension and post employmepeeses.

All amounts in the above table are presented ardgx basis.
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Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial @dition and Results of Operations

OVERVIEW

We are an integrated producer of hjggrformance advanced engineered materials usedanety of electrical, electronic, thermal
structural applications. Our products are sold mionerous markets, including consumer electromizh)strial components and commer
aerospace, defense and science, energy, meditahative electronics, telecommunications infragtnue and appliance.

Second quarter 2013 sales of $306.1 million werel@®&r than sales in the second quarter 2012. Tdgerity of this sales decline w
due to lower pass-through metal prices in the sg:cprarter 2013.

Shipments into a number of key markets, includirefedse and science, automotive electronics andsiridu components ai
commercial aerospace, improved in the second qu2®E3 over the second quarter 2012. Medical masakts softened temporarily in
second quarter, but are anticipated to grow irthird quarter 2013.

Gross margin was $52.8 million in the second qua2@l3 compared to $53.0 million in the second taR012. Improve
manufacturing performance, including the outputrfriie new beryllium plant, helped offset the unfalabe change in product mix and ot
factors affecting margins in the quarter.

Operating profit was $13.4 million in the secondader 2013, an 8% improvement over the second euad@12. Earnings per sh
were $0.43 in the second quarter 2013 compare@.88%n the second quarter 2012.

We increased the quarterly dividend to $0.08 pareshand paid $1.6 million to shareholders in thmsd quarter 2013.

Cash flow from operations was $18.1 million in fhiet half of 2013. Total debt, after increasingttie first quarter 2013, declined in
second quarter 2013, primarily due to the improsash flow in that period. As of the end of the setquarter 2013, debt was up $1.8 mil
from year-end 2012, but the debt-to-debt-plus-gguaitio was 18% compared to 19% at year-end 2012.

During the second quarter 2013, we secured a nesWwiag credit facility to replace the existing fhiy that was scheduled to mature
2016. The borrowing capacity is $50.0 million highed the borrowing spreads are lower under thefaeity than they were under the pi
facility. The new facility matures in 2018.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Second Quarter Ended First Half Ended
June 28, June 29, June 28, June 29,

(Millions, except per share data) 2013 2012 2013 2012

Sales $ 306,14. $ 325,08 $ 60531 $ 678,71
Operating profit 13,39( 12,44* 22,91 22,32¢
Income before income taxes 12,57 11,62¢ 21,27: 20,81:
Net income 8,90¢ 7,92¢ 15,69« 14,04°
Diluted earnings per share $ 04: $ 0.3¢ $ 0.7t $ 0.6¢

Salesof $306.1 million in the second quarter 2013 wet8.8 million, or 6%, lower than sales of $325.1limi in the second quart
2012. Sales from three of our reportable segmemerformance Alloys, Beryllium and Composites amathinical Materials -grew in the
second quarter 2013 over the second quarter 20hRe wales from Advanced Material Technologies idecl. The prices of key re
materials, including gold, silver and copper, wknger in the second quarter 2013 than the secoadeu2012 and the lower patssougt
metal prices reduced sales in the second quarie B9 an estimated $22.0 million.

14




Sales in the first half of 2013 of $605.3 milliorere 11% lower than sales of $678.7 million in tinst half of 2012. Lower passwougt
metal prices accounted for an estimated $25.2anillif the $73.4 million decline in sales in thesffinalf of the year.

The comparisons of sales in the second quartefiemdalf of 2013 to the respective periods in 2@tere also affected by change
foreign currency translation rates, a change inatheunt of customer-supplied precious metals, tbeodtinuation of a nostrategic produ
line and other items.

Domestic sales declined approximately 7% in thewseéaquarter 2013 from the second quarter 2012 &8¢l ib the first half of 201
from the first half of 2012. International salesrev@% lower in the second quarter 2013 than thersbquarter 2012 as softer sales in .
and other parts of the world were partially offegthigher sales in Europe. International sales wlewen approximately 1% in the first half
2013 from the first half of 2012.

Sales order entry over the first two quarters df2®as approximately equal to sales.

The cost of gold, silver, platinum, palladium ampper are typically passed through to customerstag@fore movements in the pri
of these metals will affect sales, but may not haxemmensurate impact on margins. Internally, va@age our business on a vahdse:
sales basis. Value-added sales is a non-GAAP ne#sar deducts the cost of these passugh metals from sales and removes the pot
distortion caused by differences in metal valudd.sSdalueadded sales were $159.3 million in the second qu&@13, a 3% increase fr
value-added sales of $154.5 million in the secondrigr 2012. Valuadded sales were $310.6 million in the first hdl2613 and $312
million in the first half of 2012. A reconciliatioof sales to valuedded sales is provided in a later section of Masmiagement's Discussi
and Analysis.

Value-added sales to tltensumer electronics market , our largest market with approximately 27% of tatal valueadded sales in tl
second quarter 2013, were 3% lower in the secomdteuand first half of 2013 than the comparablgogs of 2012. The phasmit of ar
application for disk drive arms was a main causdtie decline in the second quarter and first bh2013 while lower shipments of copper-
based alloys in the first quarter 2013 contributethe fall-off in valueadded sales in the first half of the year. Shipm@ftprecious mete
for semiconductor and other microelectronic appiices improved slightly in the first half of 201¥alue-added sales to the consu
electronics market improved approximately 6% ingbeond quarter 2013 over the first quarter 2083 gfowing 7% in the first quarter 2C
over the fourth quarter 2012.

As a material supplier to this market, we selltengping houses and sub-assembly shops and wevemlssteps removed from the end-
use consumer. Our sales to this market in a giesiog, therefore, are affected by downstream inugrievels and production schedules
changes in market share of the intermediaries withé supply chain, not necessarily by changesliessof the final product or in consur
demand for that period. Technologies can changekiyuin this market and applications can have sliferspans.

Value-added sales to thedustrial components and commercial aerospace market improved approximately 3% in the second qui
2013 over the second quarter 2012. Vaddded sales to this market in the first half of 20owever, were 2% lower than the first hal
2012. Value-added sales of our ToughMet®ducts for heavy equipment and other applicatisriéch were a key driver for the growtt
this market in 2012, have been relatively flat tigioout the first half of 2013. The industrial compats and commercial aerospace mart
our second largest market, accounting for 18% ofvailue-added sales in the second quarter 2013.

Value-added sales to timeedical market, after growing approximately 20% in the first quar2©13 over the first quarter 2012, softe
approximately 12% in the second quarter 2013 from gecond quarter 2012. The softness in the segoader 2013 was due to lov
shipments for blood glucose test strip and x-raydeiv applications.

Value-added sales to tliefense and science market in the second quarter 2013 were approximately 2iften than the second qua
2012 and 30% higher than the first quarter 2013u&/added sales to this market were 5% lower in thst fialf of 2013 than the first half
2012 as a result of the softer first quarter 203 improvement in the second quarter 2013 waslhardue to increased shipments
beryllium products. Shipments of optics throughtha first half of 2013 were lower than the firstifhaf 2012 primarily as a result
government spending cut-backs.

Energy market value-added sales grew 3% in the second quarte3 80ér the second quarter 2012. Vahdeled sales to this mar
were 8% lower in the first half of 2013 than thestfihalf of 2012. The growth in the second qua2t3 was partially due to architectural g
applications. The valuadded sales to the oil and gas sector, which weakwn the first quarter 2013 due to market coadgj improved i
the second quarter 2013 over the first quarter 2013

15




Automotive electronics market value-added sales grew approximately 21% in the secoadeu2013 over the second quarter 2012
growing 13% in the first quarter 2013 over thetfigsiarter 2012. The growth was due to improved etadonditions and new applicat
development. Value-added sales to the automotietrehics market were approximately 12% of ourltetdue-added sales in the sect
quarter 2013.

Gross marginwas $52.8 million, or 17% of sales, in the secondrtgr 2013 compared to $53.0 million, or 16% désain the secot
quarter 2012. Gross margin in the first half of 20das $101.2 million, or 17% of sales, versus $®&illion, or 15% of sales, in the first h
of 2012. Gross margin as a percent of valdded sales was 33% in the second quarter 2013azethpo 34% in the second quarter 2
Gross margin was 33% of value-added sales in theHalf of both 2013 and 2012.

The gross margin in the second quarter 2013 béeefitom the margin generated by the higher valdéed sales, higher produci
volumes, improved efficiencies at various operaiamd other factors offset, in part, by slightlgher manufacturing overhead costs
unfavorable change in product mix and an unfaverabmbvement in currency translation rates.

The volume impact on gross margins in the firstf loél2013 was slightly unfavorable as were the g®aim product mix and tl
movement in currency translation rates. We recoadptysical inventory loss at our Albuguerque, Nexico facility of $2.3 million in th
first quarter 2013. The impact of these items wensigily offset by manufacturing improvements atesal facilities and lower manufacturi
overhead costs.

Gross margin in the second quarter 2013 and fadft ¢df 2013 benefitted from the improved manufaictgrperformance of the ne
beryllium plant in ElImore, Ohio. The plant had highest output to date in the second quarter 2@t3oaitput levels have increased for !
consecutive quarters.

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expendesaled$33.3 million in the second quarter 2013 compace$i3t3.5 million in th
second quarter 2012. SG&A expenses were $66.lomilfi the first half of 2013, unchanged from thrstfhalf of 2012. SG&A expenses w
11% of sales in the first half of 2013 and 10%ailés in the first half of 2012. SG&A expenses watés of valueadded sales in the first h
of 2013 and 2012.

Facility consolidation and closure costs under ghegram initiated in 2012 totaleébD.3 million in the second quarter 2013 and
million in the first half of 2013. One small fat¢jliwas closed in the fourth quarter 2012, while twthers are scheduled to be closed
portions of the businesses relocated to otheritiasil A fourth operation will be consolidated irdesmaller building during 2013. The cost
the first half of 2013 were primarily for employestention and severance and other items associatiedelocating the operations. Faci
consolidation and closure costs totaled $0.6 mlliothe first half of 2012, all of which was reded in the second quarter of that year.

The expense for the domestic defined benefit pengian was $0.9 million higher in the second qua2@l13 than the second qua
2012 and $1.8 million higher in the first half @18 than the first half of 2012. The increase wassed by a reduction in the discount
used to value the plan liability, changes in mastedssumptions and other factors. The increaseerese was recorded mainly in SG&#
well as cost of sales.

The incentive compensation expense under baskd plans was $0.5 million higher in the secamatter 2013 than the second que
2012 and $1.6 million higher in the first half 2013 than the first half of 2012. The increaseswaused by differences in the projected
of annual profit relative to the plans' targeteath year and other factors.

Stock-based compensation expense was $1.5 mitlitimei second quarter 2013 and $1.4 million in #mad quarter 2012. Stotlase!
compensation expense in the first half of 2013 $&28 million compared to $2.8 million in the filsalf of 2012. Movements in stodiase!
compensation between periods may be caused byaiiffes in the number of grants, the fair valuéefgrants and other items.

Offsetting a portion of the above cost increasesewlee savings from the plant consolidation prograeductions in expenses in Chin
response to the current business levels and otis¢control measures.

Movements in the exchange rates between periodftgdsn a reduction in the translated value ofaus foreign currency denomina
expenses of $0.3 million in the second quarter 20&B$0.5 million in the first half of 2013 relaivo the respective periods of 2012.
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Research and development (R&D) expensere$3.2 million in the second quarter 2013 and thesdaquarter 2012. R&D expen:
of $6.7 million in the first half of 2013 increas&éo over the $6.3 million expense in the first fefl2012. The increase was due to var
projects and higher activity levels across portiohsur business. R&D expense was approximatelyoi%ales in the first half of 2013 &
2012.

Other-net expensdotaled $3.0 million in the second quarter 2013 pared to $3.9 million in the second quarter 201the®nel
expense was $5.4 million in the first half of 2048d $7.7 million in the first half of 2012. See NdBE to the Consolidated Finan
Statements for details of the major componentsiwitther-net expense.

The metal consignment fee of $1.7 million in thes® quarter 2013 was $0.9 million lower than the 6f $2.6 million in the seco
quarter 2012 while the fee for the first six montdi2013 of $3.5 million was $1.4 million lower thahe comparable period of 2012. °
lower fee resulted from a reduction in the quarditynetal on hand and lower metal prices.

The net foreign currency exchange and translatan gas $0.2 million higher in the second quar@t2and $0.7 million higher in t
first half of 2013 than the respective periods @12 as a result of the movement in the value olil® dollar versus certain other curren
and their impact on transactions and balancesraralation to the strike prices in currency hedgetacts.

Othernet expense also includes amortization expensedébilexpense, gains and losses on the dispofiakdfassets, cash discot
and other items.

Operating profitof $13.4 million in the second quarter 2013 was8&®n improvement over the operating profit of $12.diom in the
second quarter 2012. The growth in operating prefulted from the margin generated by the higladueadded sales and a reductiol
metal consignment fees offset, in part, by highanuafacturing overhead costs and other items. Qpgrptofit of $22.9 million (4% of sale
in the first half of 2013 was 3% higher than themgting profit of $22.3 million (3% of sales) iretffirst half of 2012. Operating profit was '
of value-added sales in the first half of 2013 264d2.

Interest expense - natas $0.8 million in the second quarter 2013, ungedrfrom the second quarter 2012. For the first ¢ia013
interest expenseet was $1.6 million compared to $1.5 million ire thrst half of 2012. Average debt levels and tffeative borrowing rate
were fairly similar over the first half of 2013 atite first half of 2012.

Income before income taxemndincome tax expenstor the second quarter and first half of 2013 a@ti2were as follows:

Second Quarter Ended First Half Ended

June 28, June 29, June 28, June 29,
(Dollars in millions) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Income before income taxes $ 12¢ $ 11€ $ 21 $ 20¢
Income tax expense 3.7 3.7 5.€ 6.8
Effective tax rate 29.2% 31.8% 26.2% 32.5%

The effects of percentage depletion, the produdieaduction, executive compensation, foreign soimceme and credits, state and Ic
taxes and other items were major factors for tiffergince between the effective and statutory retéise second quarter and first half of 2
and 2012.

The tax expense for the first half of 2013 includedet discrete tax benefit of $0.6 million recatde the first quarter 2013 tt
primarily represented the estimated full valuets tesearch and experimentation credit for 201% Bénefit was not included in our tax i
for 2012 as accounting regulations require us tmne tax expense based upon the laws in effectf dseoend of the year and the L
Congress did not extend the research and expes@ti@micredit for 2012 until January 2013. The difertax rate in the second quarter
first half of 2013 also included a proportionatarghof the estimated research and experimentatéatitdor 2013.

The tax expense in the first half of 2012 inclu@@dL million for discrete items in that period.
Net incomewas$8.9 million (or $0.43 per share, diluted) in tleeend quarter 2013 versus to $7.9 million (or $@&B8share, diluted)

the second quarter 2012. Net income was $15.7omillor $0.75 per share, diluted) in the first fafl2013 and $14.0 million (or $0.68 |
share, diluted) in the first half of 2012.
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Segment Results

Results by segment are depicted in Note E to thes@wlated Financial Statements. The All Other goiuin the segment reporti
includes our parent company expenses, other cdgpoharges and the operating results of Materioni&ss Inc., a wholly owned subsidi
that provides administrative and financial oversiggrvices to our other businesses on a cost-pisis.b

The operating loss within All Other in the secondader 2013 was $0.4 million lower than the secqodrter 2012 and $1.5 milli
lower in the first half of 2013 than the first half 2012. Incurred costs at corporate were highghé second quarter and first half of 2(
partially as a result of legal and other admintsteacosts associated with the investigation i potential inventory theft in 2012, but th
costs were more than offset by an increase in elsawgt of other costs to the business units.

Advanced Material Technologies

Second Quarter Ended First Half Ended

June 28, June 29, June 28, June 29,
(Millions) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Sales $ 196.C $ 221¢ $ 389¢ $ 463.7
Operating profit 4.t 7.5 7.¢ 12.¢

Advanced Material Technologiesianufactures precious, ng@necious and specialty metal products, includingovaleposition targe
frame lid assemblies, clad and precious metal pmefp high temperature braze materials, Jima- wire, advanced chemicals, opt
performance coatings and microelectronic packadé®se products are used in wireless, semiconduptuoionic, hybrid and oth
microelectronic applications within the consumegcéionics and telecommunications infrastructureketar Other key markets for th
products include medical, defense and scienceggraard industrial components. Advanced Materialhfetogies also has metal clear
operations and iouse refineries that allow for the reclaim of pwes metals from internally generated or custorrsansgip. This segment t
domestic facilities in New York, Connecticut, Wissin, New Mexico, Massachusetts and California iaternational facilities in Asia ai
Europe.

Sales from Advanced Material Technologies were ¥19Gillion in the second quarter 2013, a decling®$.9 million, or 12%, frol
sales of $221.9 million in the second quarter 2@es in the first half of 2013 of $389.9 milliarere $73.8 million, or 16%, lower than st
of $463.7 million in the first half of 2012. Lowpassthrough metal prices accounted for an estimated7$2f@lion of the decline in sales
the second quarter 2013 from the second quarte2 280d $24.3 million of the decline in sales in finst half of 2013 from the first half
2012.

Value-added sales of $72.0 million in the secondrigu 2013 were 2% lower than valadded sales of $73.5 million in the sec
quarter 2012. Value-added sales in the first hia#013 were $140.7 million, a 2% decline from tfedue-added sales of $143.0 million in
first half of 2012.

Consumer electronics is Advanced Material Techrieldargest market, accounting for approximated9o3of the segment's value-
added sales. Valuadded sales to this market in the second quarte3 2@re unchanged from the year ago period andigitehin the firs
half of 2013 than the first half of 2012. On a se=gfial basis, valuadded sales to the consumer electronics market draven in 2013, ¢
value-added sales in the second quarter were 18B@hthan in the first quarter while valadded sales in the first quarter were 19% hi
than in the fourth quarter 2012. Valadded sales of phosphors for LED applications grethe second quarter and first half of 2013 dt
the improved performance that these materials geouowever, valuadded sales of precious metals for LED applicatimge declined i
manufacturers are redesigning their products tolawer quantities of precious metals in order tduee costs and the ultimate price to
end-use consumers. Value-added sales for wirefgdications improved in the second quarter 2013 tive second quarter 2012 while value-
added sales for data storage applications softened.

Value-added sales to the medical market, primarily precimetal coated precision polymer films, declinpgraximately 10% in tr
second quarter 2013 from the second quarter 20akieNddded sales to the medical market had grown iditstequarter 2013 over the fi
quarter 2012 and value-added sales in the firdtdfa2013 were 6% higher than valadded sales in the first half of 2012. Manufacty
issues at an outside vendor caused delays in shipr@ a key customer in the second quarter 20bh8sd issues have been resolved
shipments were resumed late in the quarter. Baged arder entry patterns and other market inforomative anticipate that shipments to
medical market will be strong in the third quar@913. The medical market is this segment's secange$t market, accounting
approximately 16% of value-added sales in the stqorarter 2013.
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Value-added sales from refining and shield kit cleanipgrations grew in the second quarter 2013 and Hiadtt of 2013 over tt
respective periods of 2012. This growth is pastidile to capturing additional market share suppdsieour expanded operations that pro
additional capacity and improved processing timidge level of valueadded sales from these operations is also partafiynction of th
ounces in the supply chain available to be recldinfée closure of the shield kit cleaning operaiam the Czech Republic in the fol
quarter 2012 had a slightly unfavorable impact onv@lue-added sales in the first half of 2013.

Defense and science valadded sales declined approximately 6% in the seqoader 2013 and 12% in the first half of 2013rfrthe
comparable periods in 2012. The decline was lardeg/to lower shipments of optics as a result @egoment spending clftacks. A numbg
of defense applications for optics are funded @mdain active. However, the order entry rate has Iseé and orders could be more seve
impacted by potential government spending cuts thighbeginning of the new federal government figealr in October.

The valueadded sales to the energy market, after softemiripd first quarter 2013 from the first quarter 20grew 12% in the seco
quarter 2013 over the second quarter 2012. Thetgrowthe second quarter 2013 was largely due ianmsnts of silvereontaining produc
for architectural glass applications as market @i for these materials have improved. The vadded for solar applications a
improved slightly in the second quarter 2013, baetaverall shipment levels and market conditiomsaieed weak.

We discontinued sales of silver investment bar¢han third quarter 2012, as this nsimategic product line generated extremely
margins that could not justify the associated lesfelvorking capital and overhead. This action acted for a reduction in sales of $
million in the second quarter 2013 and $8.5 milliorihe first half of 2013 from the comparable pds in 2012. The valuadded impact wi
only $0.1 million in the second quarter 2013 and®$4illion in the first half of 2013.

The plant consolidation program has had minimaldotn our sales and valaeded sales in the first half of 2013. The manuifdag
of microelectronic packages was in transition, mgvirom our small facility in Massachusetts to Sipgre (with the relocation schedule:
be completed in the third quarter 2013), but safgsackages from the Massachusetts facility werehigaer in the first half of 2013 than -
first half of 2012.

Gross margin generated by Advanced Material Teduyies was $26.1 million, or 13% of sales, in theosel quarter 2013 versus $2
million, or 13% of sales, in the second quarter2@or the first half of 2013, gross margin was .$5million, or 13% of sales, comparec
$55.8 million, or 12% of sales, in the first haif2012. Gross margin was 36% of vakeded sales in both the second quarter and fitsbf
2013. Gross margin was 40% of value-added saldsisecond quarter 2012 and 39% of value-added sathe first half of 2012.

The gross margin was lower in the second quart&8 20id first half of 2013 partially as a resultted margin impact on the lower value-
added sales in both periods. Process improvemadtgiald gains provided a benefit to the gross rmatfge first half of 2013; the majority
this benefit was achieved in the first quarter 28%3hese efficiencies were not as favorable irsédo®ond quarter 2013. The change in prc
mix was unfavorable in the second quarter 2013 fastl half of 2013. Manufacturing overhead coststlie second quarter 2013 w
unchanged from the second quarter 2012 and 4% lowge first half of 2013 than the first half 0022. A physical inventory loss at !
Albuquerque facility of $2.3 million in the firstugrter 2013 contributed to the margin decline mfttst half of 2013.

Total SG&A, R&D and othenet expenses were $21.5 million (11% of saleshénsecond quarter 2013 compared to $22.2 milli6ft
of sales) in the second quarter 2012. These expentded $43.1 million (11% of sales) in the finstf of 2013 and $43.0 million (9%
sales) in the first half of 2012. Expenses were 3f¥alue-added sales in the first half of 2013 80élb of valueadded sales in the first h
of 2012.

The metal consignment fee was lower in the secarattegr and first half of 2013 compared to the sgagods in 2012 due to
combination of lower metal prices and reduced dgtiastof metal on hand. SG&A expenses declineduphout the first half of 2013 due,
part, to savings resulting from the facility closwactivities and other cost control measures. Geste reduced at the Shanghai facility in
first half of 2013 in response to the current basmlevels. The aforementioned costs to implentenfacility consolidations flowed throu
this segment's expenses. R&D expenses were hightbeisecond quarter and first half of 2013 dui¢oeased activity. Corporate char
and incentive compensation expenses also werethigltiee second quarter and first half of 2013 til@comparable periods in 2012.

Advanced Material Technologies generated an opgyatiofit of $4.5 million in the second quarter 3tdnd $7.5 million in the secao
quarter 2012. Operating profit was $7.9 million (8¥sales) in the first half of 2013 compared t@ 81million
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(3% of sales) in the first half of 2012. Operatpgfit was 6% of value-added sales in the first bAR013 and 9% of valuaeded sales in tl
first half of 2012.

Performance Alloys

Second Quarter Ended First Half Ended

June 28, June 29, June 28, June 29,
(Millions) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Sales $ 742 $ 725 $ 148¢ $ 147.
Operating profit 6.8 6.7 14.1 12.¢

Performance Alloysnanufactures and sells three main product families:

Srip products , the largest of the product families, include thauge precision strip and thin diameter rod amg wihese copper a
nickel alloys provide a combination of high conduty, high reliability and formability for use asonnectors, contacts, switches, relays
shielding. Major markets for strip products inclusnsumer electronics, telecommunications infrastine, automotive electronics, applia
and medical;

Bulk products are copper and nickdlased alloys manufactured in plate, rod, bar, arzeother customized forms that, depending
the application, may provide superior strengthrasion or wear resistance, thermal conductivityutaricity. While the majority of bul
products contain beryllium, a growing portion ofllbwproducts' sales is from non-berylliuoontaining alloys as a result of proc
diversification efforts. Applications for bulk pradts include oil and gas drilling components, bagsj bushings, welding rods, plastic
tooling and undersea telecommunications housingpatent. Major markets for bulk products includeusttial components and commer
aerospace, energy and telecommunications infraatejand,

Beryllium hydroxide is produced at our milling operations in Utah fronr bertrandite mine and purchased beryl ore. Hurdxide i
used primarily as a raw material input for strimldwlk products and, to a lesser extent, by the/lBem and Composites segment. Sale
hydroxide are also made on a limited basis, typidalice a year.

Strip and bulk products are manufactured at féedlitn Ohio and Pennsylvania and are distributéetmationally through a network
company-owned service centers and outside distniband agents.

Performance Alloys' sales $74.3 million in the second quarter 2013 were (3¢Mher than sales of $72.5 million in the secondrte
2012, while sales of $148.9 million in the firstfhaf 2013 were 1% higher than the first half ofl20

Total volumes shipped in the second quarter 2012 W& higher than the second quarter 2012. Shimrandgtrip products account
for this growth as bulk product shipments were amgjed. Volumes shipped were 2% higher in the Hia#t of 2013 than the first half of 20
as the growth in strip product shipments more tbfeet a decline in shipments of bulk products. geviously noted, shipments
ToughMet® products, our ndperyllium containing alloy manufactured in stripdaoulk forms, were relatively flat in the secondager an
first half of 2013 compared to the respective misiof 2012.

There were no sales of beryllium hydroxide in teeand quarter 2013 or 2012 while beryllium hydrexghles in the first half of 20
were $0.7 million higher than in the first half2012.

Copper pass#hrough prices were lower in the second quartei32ban the second quarter 2012 after being highdhe first quarte
2013 than the first quarter 2012. The U.S. dolteerggthened against the currencies in which wedsglhg the first half of 2013. The imp.
of the stronger dollar on the translated valueooéifyn currency denominated sales coupled withittpact of the changes in copper pr
reduced Performance Alloys' sales by an estima®e2! ®illion in the second quarter 2013 and $3.9ionilin the first half of 2013 from tt
respective periods in 2012.

The sales order entry rate softened slightly ingbeond quarter 2013 and for the first half of 20dr8ler entry was approximately :
lower than sales.

Performance Alloys' valuadded sales totaled $58.8 million in the secondtqu&013 and $56.7 million in the second quar@tZ

Value-added of sales in the first half of 2013 @i.8.1 million were 2% higher than valadded sales of $116.1 million in the first hal
2012.
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Value-added sales to the automotive electronics markiebapily strip products, grew approximately 37%tlire second quarter 2013 «
32% in the first half of 2013 over the respectivaripds of 2012 as a result of improved market dioé and the development of n
applications.

Consumer electronics valuglded sales in the second quarter 2013 were fthtthve second quarter 2012, but 8% higher tharfitéi
quarter 2013. Valuedded sales into the consumer electronics market davn 4% in the first half of 2013 from the firsilf of 2012. Due 1
changes in technologies, downstream inventory ipositand other factors, our shipments into the gores electronics market in a gi
period are not necessarily driven by sales of it product or by consumer demand in that period.

Value-added sales from the industrial components and @ial aerospace market, Performance Alloys' langesket, were up 4%
the second quarter 2013 over the second quarté& 20d 2% in the first half of 2013 over the firstifrof 2012. The commercial aerosp
sector accounted for the growth in the second quafA13.

The valueadded sales into the energy market declined 10%teisecond quarter 2013 from a strong second qu01e and 17% in tl
first half of 2013 from the first half of 2012. Ehdecline was largely due to a reduction in theand gas rig count. Valusdded sales gre
11% in the second quarter 2013 over the first gu&®13 as market conditions have recently improved

The valueadded sales to various smaller markets, includiafgeridse and science, medical and telecommunicaiitfnasstructure
improved in the second quarter 2013 while the valdéed sales to the appliance market remained weak.

The gross margin on Performance Alloys' sales vt&@s8pmillion, or 24% of sales, in the second qua2@l3 and $17.9 million, or 2
of sales, in the second quarter 2012. Gross margm$35.1 million, or 24% of sales, in the firsified 2013 versus $34.9 million, or 24%
sales, in the first half of 2012. Gross margin ®&%o of value-added sales in the second quarter, 238 from 32% of valuadded sales
the second quarter 2012, and 30% of value-added sathe first half of 2013, unchanged from th@ageriod in 2012.

The slight decline in gross margin dollars in teeand quarter 2013 from the second quarter 2018teelsfrom the additional marg
generated by the increased vahadded sales, the benefits from improved shop fi@sformance and a slightly favorable change in pct
mix being more than offset by the impact of cursetr@nslation rates, lower production volumes aseirories were pulled down in 1
second quarter 2013, an increase in manufactumheae costs and other factors.

The higher gross margin dollars generated in ttst fialf of 2013 from the first half of 2012 resdtin part from the increased sale
hydroxide, higher shipments of strip and bulk prddwand the improved shop floor performance. Hriceeases also provided a minor bet
to gross margin in the first half of 2013. Thesedfés were partially offset by the unfavorable rament in translation rates, difference
production volumes, higher overhead costs and déutors.

Total SG&A, R&D and othenet expenses were $10.9 million (15% of saleshinsecond quarter 2013 versus $11.2 million (15
sales) in the second quarter 2012. These expeutsdett $21.0 million (14% of sales) in the firstfraf 2013 compared to $22.0 million (1!
of sales) in the first half of 2012. These expengere 18% of value-added sales in the first hal2@f3 and 19% of valuadded sales in t
first half of 2012.

The primary causes for the lower expenses in thergbquarter and first half of 2013 included diéfieces in foreign currency excha
gains (as a result of movements in the exchangs eatd matured hedge contracts and that offsebptiné negative impact the exchange 1
had on gross margins) and the currency rate impacthe translation of foreign currency expenses idtS. dollars. The incenti
compensation expense was also lower in the secoadey 2013 and first half of 2013 than the comiplergeriods of 2012. These bene
were offset in part by increases in R&D expenses,  higher activity levels, and corporate chairigethe second quarter and first hal
2013.

Performance Alloys generated an operating profi$®® million in the second quarter 2013 compae®8.7 million in the secol
quarter 2012. Operating profit was $14.1 milliontle first half of 2013, an improvement of $1.2lmil over the operating profit of $1:
million in the first half of 2012. Operating profitas 9% of sales in the first half 2013 and thst fialf of 2012. Operating profit was also 1
of value-added sales in the first half of 2013 amél of sales in the first half of 2012.
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Beryllium and Composites

Second Quarter Ended First Half Ended

June 28, June 29, June 28, June 29,
(Millions) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Sales $ 16z $ 12€ $ 28 % 28.7
Operating (loss) profit 0.8 (2.0 (0.5 3.9

Beryllium and Compositesnanufactures berylliunbased metals and metal matrix composites in rodetsHoil and a variety
customized forms. These materials are used inGgifans that require high stiffness and/or low dgrend they tend to be premiupricec
due to their unique combination of properties. T8g@gment also manufactures beryllia ceramic predddte acquisition of Aerospace Mt
Composites Limited (AMC) in the first quarter 20a@vides a complementary family of non-beryllilmased alloys and composites. Deft
and science is the largest market for Beryllium &uwnposites, while other markets served includeistrthl components and commer
aerospace, medical, energy and telecommunicatignastructure. Products are also sold for acoustiptical scanning and performa
automotive applications. Manufacturing facilities Beryllium and Composites are located in Ohidjf@aia, Arizona and England.

Beryllium and Composites' sales of $16.2 milliontire second quarter 2013 were $3.6 million, or 28¥gher than sales of $1.
million in the second quarter 2012. Sales of $28ilfion in the first half of 2013 were 1% lower thaales of $28.7 million in the first half
2012. Beryllium and Composites does not directlgsptarough changes in the costs of its materidty so under our definition, sales
value-added sales for this segment are the same.

Sales to the defense and science market improv&dibthe second quarter 2013 from the second qua@®? and accounted for
majority of the growth in sales from Beryllium a@@mposites. Defense and science sales in the seg@mtbr 2013 also improved 61% ¢
the first quarter 2013. Sales to this market wenerd1% in the first half of 2013 from the first haf 2012. A portion of the increased sale
the second quarter 2013 was due to orders that iwigisdly scheduled to be shipped in the first gea2013 but did not ship until the sec
quarter due to manufacturing delays. These manufagtdelays were unrelated to the new berylliuanpl While the government budget
spending reductions and the sequestration has tegbalee order entry rate, our quarterly sales du#iil3 are more dependent upon
timing of government programs. A portion of theesaimprovement in this market in the second quaréer in science applications, which
growth platform for Beryllium and Composites, apoged to traditional defense related applications.

Industrial components and commercial aerospacs #aleroved 24% in the second quarter 2013 over akvgecond quarter 2012 ¢
12% in the first half of 2013 over the first haff2012.

Sales to the medical market, primarily forag window applications, were softer in the secqodrter and first half of 2013 than
comparable periods of 2012 while sales to the ¢@enunications infrastructure market, mainly besytteramic products, grew slightly in
first half of 2013 over the first half of 2012.

The order entry level softened in the second quafAé3. For the first half of 2013, order entry vegproximately 4% lower than sales.

The gross margin on Beryllium and Composites' sates $4.5 million (28% of sales) in the second tre2013 and $1.7 million (14
of sales) in the second quarter 2012. Gross mamdine first half of 2013 was $7.3 million (26% sdles) compared to $3.9 million (14%
sales) in the first half of 2012.

The $2.8 million increase in gross margin in theosel quarter 2013 over the second quarter 2012tedsprimarily from the highe
sales volume, increased production volumes andpeoved performance of the new beryllium planto&r margin grew in the first half
2013 over the first half of 2012 due to the perfante of the new plant, improved scrap utilizatlgher production volumes and a favor:
change in product mix.

While the performance of the new plant continuednprove, additional beryllium material was purobégiuring the second qual
2013 in order to help satisfy the demand requiréminthe second half of 2013.

SG&A, R&D and othemet expenses for Beryllium and Composites totad #illion in the second quarter 2013, unchangerhfthe
second quarter 2012. These expenses were $7.@miillithe first half of 2013 compared to $7.2 roifliin the first half of 2012. In the secc
quarter 2013, increases in selling expenses, capaharges and other items were offset by rechgtiio R&D and incentive compensat
expenses. The increased expenses in the firsbhalf13 over the first half
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of 2012 were largely due to increased R&D activity various projects in the first quarter of 2018yhler corporate charges and o
expenses, including amortization expenses at AMC.

Beryllium and Composites generated an operatinfit@$0.8 million in the second quarter 2013 cargd to an operating loss of $

million in the second quarter 2012. In the firsif feé 2013, Beryllium and Composites lost $0.5 inifi compared to an operating loss of ¢
million in the first half of 2012.

Technical Materials

Second Quarter Ended First Half Ended

June 28, June 29, June 28, June 29,
(Millions) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Sales $ 19€¢ $ 181 % 38.C $ 38.t
Operating profit 2.4 2.C 3.8 3.¢

Technical Materials' capabilities include clad inlay and overlay metalisecious and base metal electroplated systemstr@bebear
welded systems, contour profiled systems and saldated metal systems. These specialty strip mevalupts provide a variety of thermr
electrical or mechanical properties from a surfaEa or particular section of the material. Ouddiag and plating capabilities allow fo
precious metal or other base metal to be appliebiminuous strip form only where it is needed uedg the material cost to the custome
well as providing design flexibility and performandvajor applications for these products includersztors, contacts, power lead frames
semiconductors, while the largest markets are aotiom electronics and consumer electronics. Theggnand medical markets are sme
but offer further growth opportunities. Technicahtdrials' products are manufactured at our Rhddaddacility.

Sales from Technical Materials of $19.6 milliontire second quarter 2013 grew 8% from sales of $ifilbn in the second quari
2012. Sales in the first half of 2013 of $38.0 oillwere 1% lower than sales of $38.5 million ie first half of 2012. The increased sale
the second quarter 2013 were across the majorigraduct lines, with inlay and milling products sing the largest growth. Order er
levels remained inconsistent throughout the fiedt bf 2013. Order entry was approximately equadates in the second quarter 2013 anc
higher than sales in the first half of 2013.

Value-added sales of $12.3 million in the secondrigm 2013 were approximately 5% higher than valdéed sales in the sect
guarter 2012 while value-added sales of $23.3 onilin the first half of 2013 were approximately 8%er than the first half of 2012.

Value-added sales to the automotive electronics marketawed in the second quarter and first half of 26%8r the comparable peric
in 2012. The improvement was in both the domesiit iaternational markets. Valwtded sales to the energy market also improveke
second quarter and first half of 2013 from the eesipe periods in 2012 due to fuel cell and othew product development programs. Value-
added sales to the consumer electronics marketreaftin the second quarter and first half of 2@tg8dly due to changes in technologies
the phase-out of the existing disk drive appligatio

Technical Materials' gross margin was $4.6 million24% of sales, in the second quarter 2013 ar@l i§dlion, or 23% of sales, in t
second quarter 2012. Gross margin for this segmwast$8.2 million in the first half of 2013 and $8illion in the first half of 2012. Gro
margin was 22% of sales in both the first half 6.2 and 2012. Gross margin improved to 38% of valleed sales in the second qu:
2013 from 36% of value-added sales in the secoadteu2012. In the first half of 2013, gross mangas 35% of valuedded sales compa
to 36% of value-added sales in the first half af20

The margin growth in the second quarter 2013 was tdua combination of the higher sales volumes iemtoved yields on inle
products resulting from lean sigma efforts. Thesadfits were partially offset by higher manufaatgrioverhead costs, including exel
salary and fringe benefit costs. The lower grossgmain the first half of 2013 resulted from theder volumes and higher manufactul
overhead costs offset in part by improved manufaajefficiencies.

SG&A, R&D and othemet expenses totaled $2.2 million in the secondtqu2013, unchanged from the second quarter ZDi@se
expenses totaled $4.4 million in the first half26f13 compared to $4.7 million in the first half212 and were 12% of sales in both peri
Expenses were 19% of value-added sales in thehigtof 2013 and 20% of valuedded sales in the first half of 2012. The loweguens!
dollars in the first half of 2013 resulted fromeduction in manpower and other administrative castsvell as a reduction in various sel
expenses in the first quarter 2013.
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Operating profit generated by Technical Materiabs 2.4 million in the second quarter 2013 comp&we®2.0 million in the secol
quarter 2012. Operating profit of $3.8 million hretfirst half of 2013 was slightly lower than thgeoating profit of $3.9 million in first half «
2012. Operating profit was 10% of sales and 16%atfe-added sales in the first half of 2013 andfitisé half of 2012.

Value-Added Sales - Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Mease

A reconciliation of sales to value-added salespa®AAP measure, for each reportable segment anchéeCompany in total for tl
second quarter and first half of 2013 and 2013 ikows:

Second Quarter Ended First Half Ended
June 28, June 29, June 28, June 29,
(Millions) 2013 2012 2013 2012
Sales
Advanced Material Technologies $ 196.C $ 221.¢ $ 389¢ $ 463.7
Performance Alloys 74.% 72.5 148.¢ 147.5
Beryllium and Composites 16.2 12.€ 28.t 28.7
Technical Materials 19.¢ 18.1 38.C 38.t
All Other — — — 0.1
Total $ 3061 $ 3251 $ 605 $ 678.%
Less: Pass-through Metal Cost
Advanced Material Technologies $ 124C $ 148<4 $ 2492 $ 320.%
Performance Alloys 15t 15.¢ 30.¢ 31.€
Beryllium and Composites — — — —
Technical Materials 7.3 6.4 147 14.t
All Other — — — —
Total $ 1466 $ 170 $ 2947 $ 366.¢
Value-added Sales
Advanced Material Technologies $ 72 $ 73t $ 1407 $ 143
Performance Alloys 58.¢ 56.7 118.1 116.1
Beryllium and Composites 16.2 12.¢ 28.t 28.7
Technical Materials 12.: 11.7 23.c 24.C
All Other — — — —
Total $ 1592 ¢ 154f $ 3106 $ 311¢

The cost of gold, silver, platinum, palladium ar@pper can be quite volatile. Our pricing policytésdirectly pass the cost of th
metals on to the customer in order to mitigateithgact of metal price volatility on our results fincoperations. Trends and comparisor
sales are affected by movements in the marketpdtéhese metals, but changes in sales may retljiimpact our profitability.

Internally, management reviews sales on a valuedddhsis. Value-added sales is a G#AP measure that deducts the value o
pass-through metals sold from sales. Vadded sales allows management to assess the impddferences in sales between perii
segments or markets and analyze the resulting nmagid profitability without the distortion of theovements in the pasgsrough met:
values. The dollar amount of gross margin and dpgrarofit is not affected by the valwsded sales calculation. We sell other metals
materials that are not considered direct pass-tfit@and their costs are not deducted from sales wdieulating value-added sales.

Our sales are also affected by changes in the Lisestomersupplied metal. When we manufacture a precious Inpetaluct, th:
customer may purchase metal from us or may eleptdwide its own metal, in which case we processmietal on a toll basis and the m
value does not flow through sales or cost of sdlesither case, we generally earn our margin bagmmh our fabrication efforts. T
relationship of that margin to sales can changeéipg upon whether the product was made from atahor the customer's. The ust
value-added sales removes the potential distoitidine comparison of sales caused by changes ilevieéof customer-supplied metal.

24




By presenting information on sales and vaddeled sales, it is our intention to allow userswffinancial statements to review our s
with and without the impact of the pass-throughatset

LEGAL

Standards for exposure to beryllium are under vewig the United States Occupational Safety and tHe&diministration (OSHA) ar
by other governmental and private standsetting organizations. One result of these reviewislikely be more stringent worker safe
standards. Some organizations, such as the Cadif@decupational Health and Safety Administratiord ahe American Conference
Governmental Industrial Hygienists, have adopteshdirds that are more stringent than the currandards of OSHA. The developm
proposal or adoption of more stringent standardg aff@ct the buying decisions by the users of bienyl-containing products. If the standa
are made more stringent and/or our customers a@r abwnstream users decide to reduce their useemlliom-containing products, o
results of operations, liquidity and financial cdimh could be materially adversely affected. Thgact of this potential adverse effect wc
depend on the nature and extent of the changdsetstandards, the cost and ability to meet the standards, the extent of any reductio
customer use and other factors. The magnitudei®ptitential adverse effect cannot be estimated.

One of our subsidiaries, Materion Brush Inc., defendant from time to time in legal proceedingemehthe plaintiffs allege they he
contracted chronic beryllium disease (CBD) or oth#ments as a result of exposure to beryllium. @BD case, which was filed in 20:
was outstanding as of the second quarter of 201&reTwere no CBD settlement payments made in tsiehfalf of 2013.

FINANCIAL POSITION

Net cash provided from operationgas $18.1 million in the first half of 2013, as matome, the effects of depreciation, amortizatoc
stock compensation expense and other items offeadécrease in accounts payable and accrued itemich(was partially due to the paym
of the 2012 incentive compensation to employeemduhe first quarter 2013).

Cashwas $15.7 million as of the end of the second gu&®13 compared to $16.1 million as of year-ent220

Accounts receivablef $129.8 million as of the end of the second qra2013 were $3.3 million, or 3%, higher than theeivabl
balance of $126.5 million as of yeand 2012. The increase was primarily due to high#ss in the second quarter 2013 than the fourhte
2012. The days sales outstanding (DSO), a meas$uhe @verage collection time, slowed from 37 dayf yearend 2012 to 38 days as
the end of the second quarter 2013 and contribitedtie increase in the receivable balance. Whike BISO level is within our historic
operating range, we continue to aggressively mowital manage our credit exposures and the coliéittadf our receivables. The bad d
expense in the first half of 2013 was immaterial.

Inventories totaled $207.6 million as of the end of the secguodrter 2013, an increase of $1.5 million sincerysrl 2012. Th
inventory turnover ratio, a measure of how effegivinventory is utilized, was relatively unchangesiof the end of the second quarter :
from year-end 2012.

The inventory increase was partially due to thecpase of beryllium feedstock during the second tgué2013 that will be used
augment production from the new beryllium planbider to meet the increased sales demand in tloaddwlf of the year.

We use the last-in, firgut (LIFO) method for valuing a large portion ofralomestic inventories. By so doing, the most récesst o
various raw materials, including gold, copper arakel, is charged to cost of sales in the currentqul. The older, and often lower, costs
used to value the inventory on hand. Thereforaecichanges in the cost of raw materials subgettd LIFO valuation method have onl
minimal impact on changes in the inventory carryiatue.

In the second quarter 2013, gold prices declinedhfthe yeaend 2012 levels. These lower prices were chargecbsd of sale
matching the pass-through prices charged to thteimegss, and did not have a significant impact anittventory value.
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Capital expendituregor the first half of 2013 and 2012 are summariasdollows:

First Half Ended

June 28, June 29,
(Millions) 2013 2012
Capital expenditures $ 13.C $ 18.C
Mine development 4.4 0.8
Subtotal 17.4 18.¢
Reimbursement for spending under government cantrac — 1.C
Net spending $ 172 $ 17.€

The multiyear $104.9 million Title Il contract with the U.Bepartment of Defense for the design and devedopof a new facility fc
the production of primary beryllium was largely goleted during 2012 and, therefore, there was ndtiaddl spending under the contrac
any reimbursements received during the first hBE@13. We did spend an additional $0.9 millionsidé of the Title Il contract during t
first half of 2013 on the beryllium facility to impve the performance of specific pieces of equipraed related infrastructure.

Spending on major projects in the first half of 3Ghcluded the large optics initiative at the Weslf Massachusetts facility, n
vertical casting equipment to increase the capdoitynanufacture ToughMet®roducts at our Lorain, Ohio facility, upgradesttie rolling
equipment at the Reading, Pennsylvania operatmmlaw for improved quality of thin gauge stripoguct, upgrades to the strip and t
product processing equipment at the Elmore faciitgd an upgrade and expansion of the welding palgilities at the Lincoln, Rhode Isle
operations. Capital spending in the first half 812 also included various information technologgj@cts.

Mine development costs of $4.4 million in the set@uarter 2013 were part of a $14.5 million pitUtah that was started in 20
Extraction of ore from this pit began late in tleee@nd quarter of this year.

Intangible assetsvere $26.6 million at the end of the second qua&®dr3, a decrease of $2.3 million since the er2DdR. The decrea
was due to current period amortization net of def&financing costs incurred in support of the mevolving credit facility.

Other liabilities and accrued itemwere $46.6 million at the end of the second quaté43, a decrease of $9.2 million from yeac
2012. The payment of the 2012 annual incentive @sation to employees in the first quarter 2013 thhasmain cause of the decline. -
fair value of derivative financial instruments deeld due to maturities and changes in market ratgle various other balances also decl
due to business levels, seasonal factors or otheses.

Unearned revenue which is a liability representing products invoicedcustomers but not yet shipped, was $0.5 millibthe end ¢
the second quarter 2013 compared to $1.5 millioofa3ecember 31, 2012. Revenue and the associzaeginmwill be recognized for the
transactions when the goods ship, title passeskther revenue recognition criteria are metoloing in advance of the shipment, whic
only done in certain circumstances, allows us tecbcash sooner than we would otherwise.

Other long-term liabilitiestotaled $16.3 million at the end of the second tuwa2013 compared to $16.2 million at yegnd 2012 &
increases in long-term compensation plan accruats ywartially offset by the amortization of capledse balances.

Unearned incomevas $58.8 million at the end of the second qua&®dr3 compared to $61.2 million as of yesd 2012. This balan
represents the unamortized reimbursements frongakiernment for equipment purchases for the newllheryfacility made under the Tit
[Il program. The reduction to unearned income ia fiinst half of 2013 was recorded against costabés on the Consolidated Statemer
Income and offset the depreciation expense recavdetie underlying equipment. Depreciation and aization expense on the Consolide
Statement of Cash Flows is depicted net of theesponding reduction in unearned income. See Ndte the Consolidated Financ
Statements.
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The retirement and post-employment benefidbility was $123.4 million at the end of the sedoguarter 2013 compared to $1-
million as of December 31, 2012. This balance regmés the liability under our domestic defined iiépension plan, the retiree medical
and other retirement plans and post-employmengjatiins.

The liability for the domestic defined benefit pemsplan declined $2.5 million in the first half 2013 as a result of a contribution to
plan totaling $5.5 million and an adjustment toestbomprehensive income of $3.6 million offset artoy an expense of $6.6 million.

The retirement and postmployment benefit liability was also affected bifedences between the payments made under othas pih
guarterly expense for these plans and other factors

Debttotaled $96.1 million as of the end of the secoudrtgr 2013, an increase of $1.8 million over thargnd 2012 balance of $9-
million. Debt increased $19.1 million in the figharter 2013 in order to fund the payment of th&Z2idicentive compensation to employee
the first quarter 2013, other working capital iteroapital expenditures and the dividend to shard#rsl Debt then declined $17.3 millior
the second quarter 2013 as a result of the improeethcome and other changes in working capiahg.

Outstanding short-term debt was $36.5 million athefend of the second quarter 2013, while longrtebt totaled $59.6 million.
We were in compliance with all of our debt covesaad of the end of the second quarter 2013.

Shareholders' equityof $430.8 million as of the end of the second qra2013 was $15.8 million higher than the balant&4d5.(
million as of yearend 2012. The primary cause for the increase iityeguthe first half of 2013 was comprehensivednme of $14.9 millior
This increase to equity was partially offset by ldesd dividends of $3.2 million in the first half 8013. Equity was also affected by st
compensation expense, the exercise of stock opgiod®ther factors.

Prior Year Financial Position

Net cash used in operating activities was $9.0ianilln the first half of 2012 as net income and dffects of depreciation were m
than offset by the net change in working capitaims, including an increase in inventory and a @ées&dn accounts payable and o
liabilities and accrued items. In the second qu&®d.2, cash provided from operations totaled $i4illon as the majority of the net grov
in working capital in the first half of 2012 occed during the first quarter 2012.

The accounts receivable balance of $123.0 millitheend of the second quarter 2012 was $5.2amjlbr 4%, higher than the yean¢
2011 balance as a result of a slower collectioigetnventories increased $21.9 million, or 12%the first half of 2012, largely due to
timing of production scheduling and to support fatsales growth within Performance Alloys. The asitjon of AMC had a minor impact «
the inventory growth in the first half of 2012.

Other liabilities and accrued items declined $4.flion in the first half of 2012 largely due to theayment of the 2011 incent
compensation expense to employees during the péflwaretirement and postnployment benefit balance was $2.9 million lowetha en
of the second quarter 2012 than yead 2011 mainly due to the contribution to the dstisedefined pension benefit plan of $5.2 mil
offset in part by the expense recorded for theowsriplans and other factors.

Capital expenditures, net of reimbursements froemgbvernment for purchases made for the berylliaailify in accordance with tl
Title 1l contract, totaled $17.8 million. Spendingithin Advanced Material Technologies totaled $@énfllion while spending withi
Performance Alloys was $5.6 million.

We acquired the outstanding shares of AMC for $8ilBon, net of cash received, during the first gea2012.

Outstanding debt increased from $81.4 million arnend 2011 to $115.4 million at the end of the seapumatter 2012. The increase
debt was used to fund the growth in working capitapital expenditures and the AMC acquisition.

Cash balances totaled $15.4 million at the enthi@&econd quarter 2012, an increase of $3.2 miioce year-end 2011.
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Off-balance Sheet Arrangements and Contractual Obgiations

We maintain the majority of our precious metals arbrtion of our copper that we use in productiara consignment basis in orde
reduce our exposure to metal price movements anefdiace our working capital investment. The balamastanding under these dfélanc
sheet consignment arrangements totaled $196.2omis of the end of the second quarter 2013 cordgar§286.9 million as of yeamnc
2012.The decline in the outstanding balance was primdiike to a reduction in the quantity of silver ayodd on hand and lower metal pric

We were in compliance with the covenants containexlir consignment agreements as of June 28, 2013.

We negotiated a new revolving credit facility ireteecond quarter 2013 that replaced the prioritiatiiat was scheduled to mature
2016. The new facility is secured and providesai$375.0 million of borrowing capacity, an increa$e$50.0 million over the prior facilit
Borrowing rates are based on a spread over LIBAR, tve spreads being slightly lower under the ri@gility than they were under the
facility. The financial covenants remained unchahg@ée new facility matures in 2018.

For additional information on our contractual obligns, please see page 38 of our Annual Repofaom 10K for the year ende
December 31, 2012.

Liquidity

We believe funds from operations plus the availddderowing capacity and the current cash balaneeadequate to support opera
requirements, capital expenditures, projected pangian contributions, the payment of quarterlyidiwnds, share repurchases, environm
remediation projects and strategic acquisitions.

Cash provided from operations was $18.1 milliothia first half of 2013. We generated cash in tlowsd quarter 2013 after consurmr
cash in the first quarter 2013 due to higher nebime and changes in working capital levels. WecBlfyi consume cash in the first quarte
a year and then generate cash over the balanbe géar.

We paid quarterly dividends to our shareholderalitog $3.2 million in the first half of 2013 undamprogram implemented in the sec
quarter 2012. The Board of Directors increasedithielend payout from $0.075 per share to $0.08spere, an increase of approximately
in the second quarter 2013. We intend to pay ateguwrdividend on an ongoing basis, subject to atiooing strong capital structure an
determination that the dividend remains in the bestest of the shareholders.

Our domestic defined benefit pension plan was dndded as of the end of the second quarter 2018triBations to the plan a
determined by a variety of factors, including tHanpfunded ratio, plan investment performance, alist rates, actuarial assumptions,
amendments, our policies and objectives, the aviiflaof cash and other factors. We anticipate mglcontributions of approximately $1.
million to the plan during 2013. Contributions hetfirst half of 2013 totaled $5.5 million. Conwiions made during the second half of 2
will be funded with cash from operations or borrogsg under existing lines of credit.

We made lump sum payments of approximately $14IBomito terminated deferred vested participantshi@ domestic defined bent
pension plan in the second quarter 2013. Underptftigram, eligible participants were offered th@anpunity to elect to receive a lump s
payment in the second quarter 2013 in lieu of aruéy upon retirement. The payments were made tl@pension plan assets and additi
Company contributions were not required to funds¢hpayments. The lump sum program was part ofangterm objective of reducing t
risks associated with this plan.

While debt increased slightly in the first half2013, equity increased by a greater amount antbtaedebt-to-debt-plugquity ratio, .
measure of balance sheet leverage, improved tods6é6 the end of the second quarter 2013 from 24%f ¢he end of the first quarter 2(
and 19% as of year-end 2012.

The available and unused borrowing capacity unberexisting lines of credit, which is subject tmilations set forth in the de
covenants, was $177.1 million as of the end oftmond quarter 2013.
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By renegotiating and securing a new revolving dridiility in the second quarter 2013, we were dblextend the maturity date out
years, which provides us with additional stabiéityd financial flexibility.

The available and unused capacity under thebalince sheet consignment lines totaled $175.1omiks of the end of the sect
quarter 2013.

We also had $15.7 million of cash as of the enthefsecond quarter 2013.
CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

For additional information regarding critical acoting policies, please refer to pages 41 to 43usfAnnual Report on Form 1K-for
the year ended December 31, 2012. There have beenaterial changes in our critical accounting pgelicsince the inclusion of tl
discussion in our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

MARKET RISK DISCLOSURES

For information regarding market risks, pleasemr&igages 45 and 46 of our Annual Report on Fo@H Tor the year ended Decem
31, 2012. There have been no material changesrimatket risks since the inclusion of this discassin our Annual Report on Form 10-K.

OUTLOOK

Market conditions remained mixed throughout theosdcquarter 2013, and we are cautious about overatket conditions in tt
second half of 2013.

Portions of the consumer electronics market harengthened, particularly advanced chemicals for Ld&iplications. The automoti
electronics market was quite strong in the firdf o 2013. The energy market, driven in part by amd gas applications, has impro
somewhat, but shipments have not returned to theddeseen in the early portions of 2012.

Government spending cbicks and the sequestration has had an impactrobusiness, particularly our optics product linee Will
closely monitor and assess the impact of thebeawks in government spending budgets and maketadjoss to this business as warrar
We believe that sales of beryllium products forethse and science applications will be solid ingdeond half of 2013 as various progre
including applications for the F-35 fighter jet attee SM3 missile defense system, are funded. Sales fenseiapplications should grow
well.

We believe that medical market sales will impravehie third quarter 2013 over the second quart&B8 23 the manufacturing issue v
an outside vendor has been resolved and order extéy have increased.

Precious metal prices declined significantly durihg second quarter 2013. Should these lower pdeesnue throughout the year,
sales could be negatively affected, but all elseaiaing equal the lower prices should not resuldipommensurate reduction in our value-
added sales.

The output and the performance of the new beryllplamt improved over the course of the first hdl2013 and we anticipate mak
additional improvements during the second halhefyear.

We will incur additional costs in the remaining oieas of the year associated with the facility slouwtn and consolidation program. '
anticipate that the benefits from the program wfilset these costs.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

Portions of the narrative set forth in this docutrtbat are not statements of historical or curfants are forwardeoking statements,
particular the outlook provided above. Our actudlife performance may materially differ from thantemplated by the forwaddoking
statements as a result of a variety of factorssé&tactors include, in addition to those mentioalsdwhere herein:

*

*

ltem 3.

Actual sales, operating rates and margins for :

Uncertainties relating to the fourth quarter 20h¥ical inventory and possible theft at our Albumque facility, including (i) th
costs and outcome of our investigations and (&)ttming and amount, if any, of any insurance pegisethat we might receive;
The global econom

The condition of the markets which we serve, whettefined geographically or by segment, with thgananarket segmer
being: consumer electronics, industrial componeartd commercial aerospace, defense and sciencematiite electronic:
medical, energy and telecommunications infrastmegtu

Changes in product mix and the financial conditibcustomer:

Our success in developing and introducing neadpcts and new product ranp-rates

Our success in passing through the costs of rawmak to customers or otherwise mitigating flutitug prices for those materie
including the impact of fluctuating prices on intery values;

Our success in integrating acquired businessdsidimg EIS Optics Limited and Aerospace Metal Cosif@s Limited

Our success in moving the microelectronics paclgagjperations to Singapo

Our success in completing the announced faciliysotidations and achieving the expected ben

Our success in implementing our strategic pland the timely and successful completion and siartf any capital projec
including the new primary beryllium facility in Elone, Ohio;

The availability of adequate lines of credit and #ssociated interest ra

The impact of the results of acquisitions on ouilitgbto achieve fully the strategic and financiabjectives related to the
acquisitions;

Other financial factors, including the cost andikmmlity of raw materials (both base and precioustals), physical invento
valuations, metal financing fees, tax rates, exgkamates, pension costs and required cash coritniisuéand other employee ben
costs, energy costs, regulatory compliance cdstscost and availability of insurance, and the iohjpdi the Company's stock pr
on the cost of incentive compensation plans;

The uncertainties related to the impact of warptést activities and acts of G¢

Changes in government regulatory requirements lam@mnactment of new legislation that impacts oligabions and operatior
The conclusion of pending litigation matters in@ctance with our expectation that there will benmaterial adverse effec

The timing and ability to achieve further efficiéee and synergies resulting from our name changepaoduct line alignme
under the Materion name and Materion brand; and

The risk factors set forth in Part 1, ltem 1Aafr Annual Report on Form 1+or the year ended December 31, 2!

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk

For information about our market risks, pleaserredeour Annual Report on Form 30to shareholders for the year ended Decemb

2012.
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ltem 4. Controls and Procedures

We carried out an evaluation under the superviaimhwith participation of management, including théf executive officer and ch
financial officer, of the effectiveness of the dpsiand operation of our disclosure controls ancqaares as of June 28, 2013 pursua
Rules 13a-15(b) and 15kb(b) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934amended. Based upon that evaluation, our manads

including the chief executive officer and chiefdirtial officer, concluded that our disclosure colstand procedures were effective as of
28, 2013.

There have been no changes in our internal cootret financial reporting that occurred during theader ended June 28, 2013
have materially affected, or are reasonably likelynaterially affect, our internal control overdimcial reporting.
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PART Il OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings

Our subsidiaries and our holding company are stifjexm time to time, to a variety of civil and advistrative proceedings arising
of our normal operations, including, without lintitan, product liability claims, health, safety apdvironmental claims and employment-
related actions. Among such proceedings are cdlsging that plaintiffs have contracted, or haver@laced at risk of contracting, berylli
sensitization or chronic beryllium disease or ottumg conditions as a result of exposure to bamylli“beryllium cases”)The plaintiffs ir
beryllium cases seek recovery under negligencevanidus other legal theories and demand compensatudt often punitive damages.
many cases of an unspecified sum. Spouses of slamiffs claim loss of consortium.

Beryllium Claims

As of June 28, 2.3, our subsidiary, Materion Brush Inc., was a dédéat in one beryllium case in the federal distdotrt ir
Philadelphia. The case was filed during Septemb&220n January 16, 2013, the Company filed a mdto judgment on the pleadings
this case. On March 13, 2013, plaintiffs filed atimo for reconsideration of the court's order degyplaintiffs’ motion to remand the cas:
state court. On April 5, 2013, the court deniedriation for reconsideration, directed the plaistifd file an amended complaint, and de
the Company's motion for judgment on the pleadimigisout prejudice and with leave to renew that mtonce plaintiffs' amended compl:
was filed. On May 2, 2013, plaintiffs filed an Andad Complaint. On May 9, 2013, the Company fileah@tion to dismiss the Amend
Complaint. The Company has some insurance covesaggct to an annual deductible.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures

Information concerning mine safety violations ohet regulatory matters required by Section 1508{ahe DoddFrank Wall Stree
Reform and Consumer Protection Act and Item 10Redulation K (17 CFR 229.104) is included in Exhibit 95 tostlguarterly report ¢
Form 10-Q.
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ltem 6. Exhibits

10.1 Materion Corporation Management Incentive Plaredfins Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Form 8-Ke(No. 1-
15885) filed on May 29, 2013), incorporated hetgjrreference.

10.2 Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement dhated 20, 2013 among Materion Corporation, Mate
Advanced Materials Technologies and Services Nisthés B.V., JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. and otheddes
from time to time party thereto (filed as Exhibfi.1 to the Registrant's Form 8-K (File No14885) filed on June 2
2013), incorporated herein by reference.

11 Statement regarding computation of per share egsnin

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer require¢ Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a).

31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer required IRule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a).

32 Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chlghancial Officer required by 18 U.S.C. Sectio50.3

95 Mine Safety Disclosure Pursuant to Section 1508{dhe DoddFrank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protec

Act for the period ending June 28, 2013.

101.INS XBRL Instance Document.

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docute
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenin
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, the registrant has duly causedréport to be signed on its bel
by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

MATERION CORPORATION

Dated: August 6, 2013
/sl John D. Grampa
John D. Grampa
Senior Vice President Finance and
Chief Financial Officer

34




10.1

10.2

11

31.1

31.2

32

95

*101.INS

*101.SCH

*101.DEF

*101.CAL

*101.LAB

*101.PRE

Exhibit Index

Materion Corporation Management Incentive Plaredfias Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant's Form 8-Ke(No. 115885)
filed on May 29, 2013), incorporated herein by refiee.

Second Amended and Restated Credit Agreement datexl20, 2013 among Materion Corporation, Matefidaancec
Materials Technologies and Services Netherlands,BI®Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. and other lenders fioma to time
party thereto (filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Registts Form 8-K (File No. 15885) filed on June 25, 2013), incorpore
herein by reference.

Statement regarding computation of per share egsnin

Certification of Chief Executive Officer require¢ Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a).

Certification of Chief Financial Officer required IRule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a).

Certifications of Chief Executive Officer and Chlghancial Officer required by 18 U.S.C. Sectio50.3

Mine Safety Disclosure Pursuant to Section 1508{dhe DoddFrank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protectiot
for the period ending June 28, 2013.

XBRL Instance Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docute
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenin

*  Submitted electronically herewith.

35



MATERION CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
COMPUTATION OF PER SHARE EARNINGS

Basic:
Average shares outstanding
Net Income
Per share amount

Diluted:
Average shares outstanding

Dilutive stock securities based on the treasurgkstoethod using
average market price

Totals
Net Income
Per share amount

Second Quarter Ended

Exhibit 11

First Half Ended

Jun. 28, Jun. 29, Jun. 28, Jun. 29,

2013 2012 2013 2012
20,566,00 20,430,00 20,524,00 20,400,00
$ 8,909,000 $ 7,929,000 $ 15,694,00 $ 14,047,00
$ 04: $ 0.3¢ 0.7¢ 0.6¢
20,566,00 20,430,00 20,524,00 20,400,00
303,00( 236,00( 321,00( 287,00(
20,869,00 20,666,00 20,845,00 20,687,00
$ 8,909,000 $ 7,929,000 $ 15,694,00 $ 14,047,00
$ 04: $ 0.3¢ 0.7% 0.6¢




2)

3)

4)

5)

Exibit 31.1
CERTIFICATIONS

I, Richard J. Hipple, certify that:

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Foi®rQ of Materion Corporation (the “registrant”);

Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omittde a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisiebding with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,adiner financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operet and cash flows of the registrant as of, and tfee periods presented in t
report;

The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange #
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures ¢tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiolatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhteubsidiaries, is mau
known to us by others within those entities, paittidy during the period in which this report isirige prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in at@uce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsaghitsclosure controls and procedures and presémtbds report our conclusiol
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contot procedures, as of the end of the period couvgyddtlis report based «
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the stegits internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrig that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaf, the registrant’s internal control over finate¢eporting; and

The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @rdver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitauadmmittee of the registramst’board of directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsssethe design or operation of internal controkmfinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refioancial
information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a significalet in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

/sl Richard J. Hipple

Dated: August 6, 2013 Richard J. Hipple

Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer



2)

3)

4)

5)

Exhibit 31.2
CERTIFICATIONS

[, John D. Grampa, certify that:

I have reviewed this quarterly report on Foi®rQ of Materion Corporation (the “registrant”);

Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraajnuntrue statement of a material fact or omittde a material fact necess
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisiebding with respect to tl
period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,adiner financial information included in this repdairly present in all materi
respects the financial condition, results of operet and cash flows of the registrant as of, and tfee periods presented in t
report;

The registrang other certifying officer and | are responsible éstablishing and maintaining disclosure contesld procedures (i
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15¢)) and internal control over financial repagtifas defined in Exchange #
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd have:

a) designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and procedures ¢tesigned under ¢
supervision, to ensure that material informatiolatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhteubsidiaries, is mau
known to us by others within those entities, paittidy during the period in which this report isirige prepared;

b) designed such internal control over financial répgr or caused such internal control over finah@aorting to be designe
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repogiand the preparation
financial statements for external purposes in at@uce with generally accepted accounting princjples

c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registsaghitsclosure controls and procedures and presémtbds report our conclusiol
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contot procedures, as of the end of the period couvgyddtlis report based «
such evaluation; and

d) disclosed in this report any change in the stegits internal control over financial reporting thatcooed during th
registrant’'s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annuabrig that has material
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaf, the registrant’s internal control over finate¢eporting; and

The registran$ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal @rdver financia
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitauadmmittee of the registramst’board of directors (or persons performing
equivalent functions):

a) all significant deficiencies and material weaknsssethe design or operation of internal controkmfinancial reportin
which are reasonably likely to adversely affect thgistrants ability to record, process, summarize and refioancial
information; and

b) any fraud, whether or not material, that involveanagement or other employees who have a significalet in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

/sl John D. Grampa

Dated: August 6, 2013 John D. Grampa

Senior Vice President Finance and Chief Financfatér



Exhibit 32

Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
As Adopted Pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adoptedigatrso Section 906 of the Sarbari@dey Act of 2002, in connection with the fili
of the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Materionr@wation (the “Company”for the quarter ended June 28, 2013, as filed Wit

Securities and Exchange Commission on the dat@h@he “Report”),each of the undersigned officers of the Compantifiesr that, to suc
officer's knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with the requirementsSefction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeoh 1934 (15 U.S.C. 78m
780(d)), and

2. The information contained in the Report fairly mets, in all material respects, the financial ctadiand results of operations of -
Company as of the dates and for the periods exgaéashe Report.

Dated: August 6, 2013
/sl Richard J. Hipple

Richard J. Hipple
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

/sl John D. Grampa
John D. Grampa
Senior Vice President Finance and Chief Financfaté&r




Exhibit 95
Materion Corporation

Mine Safety Disclosure Pursuant to Section 1503(af the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act for the Fiscal Quarter Endel June 28, 2013

Materion Natural Resources Inc., a wholly ownedsgtibry, operates a beryllium mining complex in 8tate of Utah which is regulated
by both the U.S. Mine Safety and Health Administra{“MSHA”) and state regulatory agencies. We ena® to conduct our mining and
other operations in compliance with all applicafelderal, state and local laws and regulations. Yéegnt information below regarding cert
mining safety and health citations which MSHA hagiéd with respect to our mining operations.

Section 1503(a) of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Rafand Consumer Protection Act (“Section 1503(e98uires the Company to pres
certain information regarding mining safety inperiodic reports filed with the Securities and Exepe Commission.

The following table reflects citations, orders aradices issued to Materion Natural Resources md18HA during the fiscal quarter
ended June 28, 2013 (the “Reporting Period”) andains certain additional information as requirgd3ection 1503(a) and Item 104 of
Regulation S-K, including information regarding nig-related fatalities, proposed assessments from M&htAlegal actions (“Legal
Actions”) before the Federal Mine Safety and He&#view Commission, an independent adjudicativaegéhat provides administrative
trial and appellate review of legal disputes agsumder the Mine Act.

Included below is the information required by Sewxtl503(a) with respect to the beryllium mining g@ex (MSHA Identification
Number 4200706) for the Reporting Peri

(A) Total number of alleged violations of mandatoryltiear safety standards that could significantld aabstantially
contribute to the cause and effect of a mine safetyealth hazard under Section 104 of the Mineféictvhich Materion
Natural Resources Inc. received a citation from MSH 3

(B) Total number of orders issued under Section 10df{(t)e Mine Act
© Total number of citations and orders for allegediammantable failure by Materion Natural Resouraes to comply with

o

mandatory health or safety standards under Setfid(d) of the Mine Act 0
(D) Total number of alleged flagrant violations undectn 110(b)(2) of the Mine Act 0
(E) Total number of imminent danger orders issued uSgetion 107(a) of the Mine Act 0
(3] Total dollar value of proposed assessments from RM8hrder the Mine Act $0
(G) Total number of mining-related fatalities 0
(H) Received notice from MSHA of a pattern of violasamnder Section 104(e) of the Mine Act No
()] Received notice from MSHA of the potential to haveattern of violations under Section 104(e) ofltiee Act No
J) Total number of Legal Actions pending as of the ths/ of the Reporting Period 0
(K) Total number of Legal Actions instituted during fReporting Period 0

(L) Total number of Legal Actions resolved during trepBrting Period 0



